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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Rutherford County Courthouse is a large brick building of the
late 1850's, altered during its subsequent career with major
changes to its cupola after a severe storm of 1913,

The Courthouse was erected in 1859 at a reputed cost of $50,000.

An early photograph indicated that it consisted of an eclectic
combination of Classical Revival and Italianate details, the latter
somewhat reminiscent of Samuel Sloan's courthouses in Williamsport,
Pennsylvania (destroyed) and Sunberry, Pennsylvania (extant). -

Roughly square in plan, its doors and windows were Fframed and
shuttered in a late Classical Revival mode on both stories. A
large central two-story portico with four evenly spaced monumental
columns occupied the central pair of its six bays. The free-
standing columns were fluted with large, somewhat crude capitals
in a composite order. Monumental pilasters marked the edges of
each bay. A bracketed triangular pediment was placed over the
portico, while a broad hipped roof covered the entire structure.
From the center of the roof rose a tall two-storied cupola on a
low socle. 1Its lower story, square in plan, was decorated with
grouped Italianate louvered round-headed ventilators with a round
clock above them which broke the cornice line. The upper story
was octagonal with round-headed openings between pilasters reaching
the springing points of their arches. An octagonal dome crowned
the cupola and was surmounted by a flagpole.

Later modifications consisted of remodelling all fenestration with
drip guards over the lower openings. A third floor was inserted
beneath the roof with second and third story windows united by a
panel between them and a round-headed arch overhead. The cornice
was replaced. The original was decorated with paired brackets

while the current one is supported on evenly spaced modillions.

The portico pediment was changed in proportion, now being lower

and broader than the original. A brick parapet was placed above

the cornice which obscures the roof from ground level. The inner
pair of portico columns was moved outward to broaden the ingress,
resulting in an arrangement of paired instead of evenly-spaced
supports. The entire cupola was replaced with a glazed octagonal
example with a much higher octagonal dome and surmounting lantern.
The cupola clock was imbedded into the dome. A large brick addition
-one bay in depth, was appended to either side of the building. The
addition is terminated at the second story level of the main
structure.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The first Murfreesboro courthouse was erected on the present

site on the public square in 1812. Although no description of
the building is available, it evidently was not very substantial,
as in March, 1818, the court appointed commissioners to have it
repaired or improved. In 1822, while Murfreesboro was the
Capital of Tennessee, the courthouse burned. A commission was
appointed by the legislature to supervise the erection of a new
courthouse which was of brick and constructed at a cost of
approximately $6,000. In January, 1859, a committee was appointed
to investigate the necessity of building a new courthouse. After
careful investigation, the committee reported that a new building
was an absolute necessity, and the present building was construc-
ted in 1859 at a cost of $50,000.

Probably the most exciting day which the building has witnessed
was July 13, 1862, when the dashing Confederate cavalry leader,
General Nathan Bedford Forrest, recaptured the courthouse from
Federal occupation and rescued several Confederate prisoners

who had been sentenced to hang. Evidences of the impact of mini-
balls may still be seen in some of the brick of the courthouse
walls.

The significance of the courthouse lies more in its site than
the quality of its architecture. Murfreesboro was originally
designed as a courthouse town. On a regular grid, a smaller
central square was imposed to accommodate the administrative
structure. This isolated island became the heart of the new
town from the time of the construction of the first courthouse.
The current building, by its imposing height and great solidity,
provides a very real visual focus to the older central section
of Murfreesboro, as the original town planners and the designers
of the current structure intended. It is as symbolic as it is
functional. It dignifies and marks the town as the regional
center of justice and administration. It is an integral part

of the fabric of Murfreesboro and no twentieth century structure
could Ffill the shoes of this somewhat battered nineteenth century

monument on its intended nineteenth century site.
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"The Antebellum Courthouses of Temnessee" Herbert L. Harper,
Tennessee Historical Quarterly, Vol. XXX, No. 1, Spring 1971,

pp. 21-23.

Consultant:

Vaughn L. Glasgow
Art & Architectural Historian
Middle Tennessee State University

Murfreesboreo, Tennessee
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Additional Information

The Confederate Monument on the courthouse square.

The monument was erected on November 7, 1901 by the Ladies Memorial Association
(Murfreesboro Chapter #91 United Daughters of the Confederacy), the J.B. Palmer Bivouac, the

Sons of Confederate Veterans.

It is bronze statue of a Confederate soldier on a granite base with bronze plaques with inscriptions
on all four sides. The statue faces north.

Inscriptions:

Front, northeast side. In commemoration of the valor of Confederate soldiers, who fell in the great
battle of Murfreesboro, Dec. 31, 1862, and January 2, 1863 and in minor engagements in the
vicinity, this monument is erected

Southeast side. Lest we forget 1861-1865

Southwest side. “A monument for our soldiers, built of a people’s love.”

Northwest side. Honor decks the turf that wraps their clay

Information supplied by Linda Logan, Chair, Monuments Committee, United Daughters of the
Confederacy
























